



## **Document Status**

Document status	Date	Prepared by	Checked By	Approved by	Comments
Rev 0	August 2008	URS Australia Pty Ltd	A. Clifton	D. Kelly	
Rev 1	April 2014	URS Australia Pty Ltd	A. Clifton	D. Chia	
Rev 2	April 2015	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	A. Clifton	K. Franke	
Rev 3	April 2016	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	A. Clifton	K. Franke	
Rev 4	April 2017	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	A. Clifton	K. Franke	
Rev 5	June 2018	WSP	A. Clifton	A. Clifton	
Rev 6	June 2019	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	A. Clifton	S. Bottin	
Rev 7	August 2020	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	D. Mudd	S. Bottin	
Rev 8	August 2021	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	D. Mudd	S. Bottin	
Rev 9	March 2022	AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd	D. Mudd	S. Bottin	Minor changes



# **Table of Contents**

1.	Introduction	1
1.1	Objective	1
1.2	Target	1
1.3	Responsibilities	1
2.	Requirements	2
2.1	Key Licence/ Development Consent Requirements	2
2.2	Key legislative and regulatory requirements	6
3.	Management measures	8
3.1	Existing heritage items	8
3.2	Control measures – European Heritage	8
4.	Monitoring and reporting	13
4.1	Records	13
5.	Administrative	14
5.1	Training and competence	14
5.2	Site specific plans	14
5.3	Attachments	14
5.4	Definitions	14
5.5	HSEMS references	14
5.6	References	14
Tab	oles	
Tabl	e 1.1: Roles and responsibilities	1
Tabl	e 2.1: Licence requirements and conditions of consent – European Heritage	2
Tabl	e 2.2: Legislation and policies – European Heritage	6
Tabl	a 3.1: Control mageuras – European Haritaga	g

# **Appendices**

Appendix A Existing heritage items register



## 1. Introduction

An Environmental Management Plan (EMP) has been prepared for the AGL Upstream Investments Pty Ltd (AGL) Camden Gas Project ('the project' or 'CGP'). This European Heritage Management Sub Plan (EHMSP) has been prepared to supplement the EMP.

The EMP includes a description of the CGP and the overall environmental management framework for the CGP. This EHMSP has been developed to specifically address and manage potential European Heritage issues for all of the operations of the CGP.

The construction phases for the existing development consents have been completed, and the CGP is a mature operating field. Note: All historical references to construction activities have been retained in this plan for completeness and to document compliance with Licence and Development Consent requirements.

## 1.1 Objective

The objective of the EHMSP is to protect and preserve European cultural heritage. This will be achieved by following recommendations relating to the protection of European heritage sites and values.

## 1.2 Target

No unauthorised damage to European Heritage sites as a result of CGP activities.

## 1.3 Responsibilities

The roles and responsibilities for implementing this EHMSP are summarised in **Table 1.1**. Further responsibilities are assigned in **Table 3.1**.

Table 1.1: Roles and responsibilities

Role	Responsibility
Environment Business Partner	<ul> <li>Review and update the EHMSP following modifications to Project Development Approvals or new Development Approvals.</li> <li>Notify the NSW Heritage Office in the event that an unrecorded relic is uncovered.</li> <li>Inform site personnel of the heritage management procedures through the site-specific induction program.</li> <li>Implement site specific heritage recommendations as required.</li> <li>Monitor procedures and reporting as required.</li> <li>Conduct monitoring and reporting requirements.</li> </ul>
Field and Rehabilitation Operator	Landowner consultation with assistance from the Environment Business     Partner in addressing and managing incidents and complaints in relation to     heritage management.
All leaders	Responsible for ensuring that all works under their control are undertaken in accordance with the EHMSP. Responsible for ensuring that all employees and contractors under their control are familiar with and adhere to the requirements of the EHMSP.
All employees/ contractors	Are responsible for following the induction requirements that arise from their work activities onsite, so as to minimise the environmental impact.

1



# 2. Requirements

## 2.1 Key Licence/ Development Consent Requirements

Table 2.1 lists the key licence and development consent requirements for the CGP in relation to European Heritage.

Table 2.1: Licence requirements and conditions of consent – European Heritage

Reference	Requirement	Section of this Management Plan
DA 15-1-2002: 71 (Sch 3) Fields – Ray Beddoe Treatment Plant, Apap, Joe Stanley, Johndilo, Loganbrae, Lipscombe, Mahon	If, during the site preparation and/or drilling phases of the development, an unexpected archaeological relic is uncovered, excavation shall cease and an excavation permit under the Heritage Act 1977, shall be obtained from the NSW Heritage Office.  Note: a relic is defined under the Heritage Act as any deposit, object or material evidence:  a) which relates to the settlement of the area that comprises NSW, not being Aboriginal settlement; and b) which are more than 50 years old.  Note: Under Section 139 of the Heritage Act 1977 a person must not disturb or excavate land that is likely to result in a relic being discovered/exposed/moved/ damage or destroyed unless the activity is undertaken in accordance with an excavation permit.  Note: All site preparation and drilling works related to DA 15-1-2002 have now been completed.	Item 19 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)
DA 246-8-2002i: 28B (Sch 3) Field – Kay Park	28B. The Applicant shall ensure that, if any historical archaeological relics within the meaning of the Heritage Act 1977 are disturbed, the Heritage Council of NSW shall be notified in accordance with section 146 of the Heritage Act 1977.	Item 13 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)



Reference	Requirement	Section of this Management Plan
DA 282-6-2003i: 13L, 89-90A (Sch 4) Fields – RPGP, Rosalind Park, Wandinong, EMAI (EM01-20, 38-40), Glenlee (GL05, 07- 10, 14-17)	Vegetation and Landscape Management Plan for the Gas Treatment Plant site and the gas well sites. The plan shall include, but not necessarily be limited to reasonable measures to minimise the impacts of the gas wells on the cultural heritage landscape of the EMAI.  The Applicant shall implement all mitigatory measures listed in Sections 7.1, 7.2 and 7.3 of the report titled "Statement of Heritage Impact for Land within the Elizabeth Macarthur Agricultural Institute NSW Agriculture, Menangle" by Geoffrey Britton dated September 2003.  The Applicant shall ensure roadside plantings for sites EM16, EM18, EM19 and EM20 are strengthened using the species outline provided in the report titled "Statement of Heritage Impact for Land within the Elizabeth Macarthur Agricultural Institute NSW Agriculture, Menangle" by Geoffrey Britton dated September 2003.  Note: a relic is defined under the Heritage Act as any deposit, object or material evidence:  a) which relates to the settlement of the area that comprises NSW, not being Aboriginal settlement; and b) which is more than 50 years old.  Note: All works required under DA 282-6-2003i have previously been completed.	Rehabilitation and Landscape Management Sub Plan; and item 4 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2) Section 3.2 Rehabilitation and Landscape Management Sub Plan; and item 17 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)
	90A. The Applicant shall ensure that, if any historical archaeological relics within the meaning of the Heritage Act 1977 are disturbed, the Heritage Council of NSW shall be notified in accordance with section 146 of the Heritage Act 1977.	Item 13 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)
DA 282-6-2003i:9 (Sch 5)	9. Within one month of completion of the independent environmental audit (for construction at EMAI), the Applicant must submit a copy of the audit report to the Director-General, the NSW Heritage Office and NSW Agriculture. The Director-General may require the Applicant to address certain matters identified in the report and any comments received from the NSW Heritage Office and NSW Agriculture. Any action required to be undertaken shall be completed within such period as the Director-General may agree.  Note: All works required under this condition have previously been completed.	Item 16 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)



Reference	Requirement	Section of this Management Plan	
DA 183-8-2004: 16A (Sch 2) Field – Mount Taurus and Menangle Park (MP13-17, MP30)	Refer to DA 246-8-2002i: 28B (Sch 3)	Item 13 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)	
DA 75-4-2005: 45- 46 (Sch 2) Field - Sugarloaf	45. The Applicant must ensure that should any historical relics be uncovered, excavation or disturbance of the area is to stop immediately, and the Heritage Council of NSW is notified within a reasonable time of the discovery or location of these relics. Archaeological assessment and approval, or endorsement, may be required prior to works continuing in the affected area(s) based on the nature of the discovery.	Item 13 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2) Section 4; and item 18 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)	
	46. An Interpretation Study being prepared to the satisfaction of the Director, Heritage Office and executed by the Applicant within 6 months of the date of this approval.		
PA 06_0291: 21 (Sch 3) Fields – Spring Farm, Menangle Park	The Proponent shall ensure that the location of wells or other infrastructure avoid or minimise any impacts on the heritage significance of any State Heritage Register listed items in the project area.	Item 2 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2)	



Reference	Requirement	Section of this Management Plan
DA-75-4-2005: 8- 57 (Sch 2)	8. Construction shall not commence until the Applicant has obtained an approval under section 60 of the <i>Heritage Act 1977</i> from the NSW Heritage Council.	Item 1 in Table 3.1 (Section 3.2) Item 15 in Table 3.1
	On completion of all construction works at Sugarloaf Farm, the applicant shall commission and pay the full costs of an Independent Environmental Audit of the drilling and fraccing of gas wells and construction of the gas gathering system and access roads on the site, to monitor the performance and effect of construction activities on the site. The independent audit shall:	(Section 3.2)
	Be conducted by a suitably qualified, experienced, and independent person(s) whose appointment has been approved by the Director-General; and	
	b) Be consistent with ISO 19011:2002 - Guidelines for Quality and/ or Environmental Management Systems Auditing, or updated versions of these guidelines/manuals.	
	The audit shall:	
	a) Assess the environmental performance of the construction of the development on the site, and its effects on the surrounding environment;	
	b) Assess whether the development is complying with the relevant standards, performance measures, and statutory requirements;	
	c) Consider the Applicant's proposed Construction Environmental Management Plan; and	
	d) Recommend measures or actions to improve the environmental performance of the construction of the development, and/or its environmental management and monitoring systems (if required).	
	Within one month of completion of the audit, the Applicant must submit a copy of the audit report to the Director-General and the NSW Heritage Office. The Director-General may require the Applicant to address certain matters identified in the report and any comments received from the NSW Heritage Office. Any action required to be undertaken shall be completed within such period as the Director-General may agree.	
	Note: All construction works related to DA 75-4-2005 have now been completed.	

It is a requirement of all development consents that work be carried out generally in accordance with the relevant Environmental Impact Statement (**EIS**) or Environmental Assessment (**EA**), which incorporates any specific recommendations or commitments related to heritage.



## 2.2 Key legislative and regulatory requirements

Table 2.2 lists the key New South Wales and Commonwealth legislation and policies that relate to heritage. The Register of the National Estate and the State Heritage Register list items of national and state heritage significance and items of local significance are listed in local environmental plans (**LEPs**). The following LEPs are applicable to the project:

- · Camden LEP 2010;
- · Campbelltown LEP 2015; and
- Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2011 (LEP 2011).

The LEPs listed above contain items in the project area that have been identified as being of local heritage significance. The LEPs contain specific requirements for the development of heritage items, or in proximity to heritage items.

Table 2.2: Legislation and policies - European Heritage

Legislation / Policy	Relevance
NSW Environmental Planning and Assessment Act (EP&A Act)1979	The EP&A Act and the EP&A Regulation include provisions to ensure that proposals which have the potential to impact the environment are subject to detailed assessment, and provide opportunity for public involvement. Section 121S of the EP&A Act states that:
	A person must not give an order under this Division in respect of an item of the environmental heritage to which this section applies until after the person has considered the impact of the order on the heritage significance of the item.
	A person must not give an order under this Division in respect of an item of the environmental heritage to which subsection (1) (a) applies until after the person has given notice of the order to the Heritage Council and has considered any submissions duly made to the person by the Heritage Council.



Legislation / Policy	Relevance
NSW Heritage Act 1977	The purpose of the NSW Heritage Act 1977 is to ensure that the non-Aboriginal cultural heritage of NSW is adequately identified and conserved. The Act is concerned with all aspects of conservation ranging from the most basic protection against damage and demolition, to restoration and enhancement. This Act makes provisions to conserve the environmental heritage of the State. It provides for the identification and registration of items of State heritage significance, provides for the interim protection of items of State heritage significance, and provides for the keeping of a State Heritage Register.  Section 57 of the Heritage Act states that a place, building, work, relic,
	moveable object, precinct, or land, listed on the State Heritage Register, must not be damaged, moved, altered, or compromised by development, without approval from the Heritage Council of NSW.
	Section 57 of the Act lists the activities that require approval from the Heritage Office if an item is subject to an Interim Heritage Order or is on the State Heritage Register. Certain activities may not require approval under standard exemptions under S57(2).
	Section 139 prohibits disturbance of a relic unless it is conducted in accordance with an "excavation permit from the Heritage Council".
	Section 146 requires that the discovery of a previously unknown relic be reported to the Heritage Council within a reasonable time of its discovery.
Sydney Regional Environmental Plan 20 – Hawkesbury-Nepean	Sydney Regional Environmental Plan 20 – Hawkesbury-Nepean (SREP 20) applies to certain land within the Hawkesbury-Nepean Catchment, including certain land within the local government areas (LGAs) of Camden, Campbelltown and Wollondilly.
	SREP 20 includes specific planning considerations and recommended strategies for cultural heritage and lists certain items of heritage value. The REP requires assessment of potential impacts on listed items.
Commonwealth Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999	The EPBC Act requires the approval of the Commonwealth Minister for the Environment and Heritage for actions that may have a significant impact on matters of National Environmental Significance (NES). Approval from the Commonwealth is in addition to approvals required under NSW legislation.
(EPBC Act)	There are currently no World or Commonwealth heritage places identified within the project area.



## 3. Management measures

## 3.1 Existing heritage items

Heritage items located within CGP and noted in the following documents/registers are listed below in **Table 3.1**:

- · Local Environmental Plan (LEP);
- Sydney Regional Environmental Management Plan (SREP);
- · Site Heritage Register (SHR); and
- Register of the National Estate (RNE).

It should be noted that a number of heritage items are also under consideration for possible SHR listing, having been the subject of nominations. These include:

- · Yamba, 165 Camden Valley Way, Elderslie;
- St. John's Church Precinct, Menangle Road/ Broughton Street, Camden;
- · Mount Gilead, Appin Road, Gilead;
- · Glen Lorne, Appin Road, Gilead; and
- · Meadowvale, Appin Road, Gilead.

## 3.2 Control measures - European Heritage

Table 3-1 describes control measures to be implemented at the Rosalind Park Gas Plant (RPGP) and the operating field to minimise impacts to items of European Heritage.

Table 3.1: Control measures – European Heritage

	Activity	Action	Area		Responsibility
			RPGP	Field	
1.	Pre-Activity	Obtain approval from the NSW Heritage Council prior to commencing construction works.		✓	Manager, Asset Property Services
2.	Pre-Activity	Select locations of wells, access roads and gas gathering lines to avoid items of heritage significance (particularly State Heritage Register listed items) where possible by redesign or relocation of proposed infrastructure and/ or activities.		<b>√</b>	Manager, Asset Property Services
3.	Pre-Activity	Prior to commencing construction of new sites, consult the Heritage Council's website (http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/Heritag e/listings/index.htm) to assess if items of heritage significance are listed.		<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner



	Activity	Action	Ar	ea	Responsibility
			RPGP	Field	
4.	Pre-Activity	Prepare and implement a Vegetation and Landscape Management Plan for the Gas Treatment Plant site and gas well sites, to include impacts on the cultural heritage landscape of the EMAI.  Note: This Action has been previously completed.	<b>√</b>	<b>✓</b>	Environment Business Partner
5.	Construction	Retain a heritage expert/architect to supervise works that are in close proximity to the Nepean River underbridge Menangle – rail ref: 64.8 km, and Menangle Station (old building).  Note: This Action has been previously completed.		<b>✓</b>	Environment Business Partner
6.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Brief personnel/ contractors prior to excavation during the site-specific induction on heritage issues and on the appropriate course of action if any historic relics are discovered.	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner
7.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Maintain existing vegetation which provides screening of works and minimise removal of vegetation where possible.		<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner
8.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation (EMAI)	Do not modify the old estate road by widening, changing the alignment or substantially adding to the existing shale surface. Retain existing width, alignment and low-key character of access roads as traditional farm roads.		<b>√</b>	Manager, Asset Property Services
9.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation (EMAI)	Supervise vehicular access throughout the EMAI land in conjunction with NSW Agriculture or superintendent. Control and limit impact of heavy vehicles by using temporary fencing at each well site.		<b>√</b>	Field and Rehabilitation Operator
10.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation (EMAI)	Reduce the potential for visual obtrusion by backing signs with Masonite, consider the use if grey signs (or some other less contrasting colour than white), colouring fencing and gas production hardware to blend with the surrounds.		<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner
11.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Implement the recommendations of heritage assessments, where relevant. (Note: a list of relevant documents is provided in Section 4.1 of this EHMSP)	<b>√</b>	✓	Environment Business Partner



	Activity	Action	Ar	ea	Responsibility
			RPGP	Field	
12.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Do not undertake works in the rail corridor or it's easements before appropriate approval/licence is granted by the Australian Rail Track Corporation.		<b>√</b>	Manager, Asset Property Services
13.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	If any historic relics, as defined by the Heritage Act 1977 are identified in the course of activities, then works in the vicinity of the finds are to cease immediately, report the discovery of an unknown relic to the Heritage Council of NSW (within a reasonable time of its discovery), and an archaeologist from the NSW Heritage Office is to be contacted, and an appropriate course of action implemented.	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	Environment Business Partner
14.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Maintain records of the identified items of heritage significance within a site land dossier.		<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner
15.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Upon completion of construction works at Sugarloaf Farm, commission an independent environmental auditor to monitor the performance and effect of drilling and fraccing of gas wells and construction activities on the site in accordance with the requirements of DA-75-4-2005: 8-57 (Sch 2). Within one month of the audit, submit a copy of the audit report to the Director- General, the NSW Heritage Office and NSW Agriculture.  Note: This Action has been completed.		<b>&gt;</b>	Environment Business Partner
16.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Within one month of an independent environmental audit undertaken for the construction at EMAI, submit a copy of the audit report to the Director- General, the NSW Heritage Office and NSW Agriculture.  Note: This Action has been completed.		<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner
17.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Ensure roadside plantings for sites EM16, EM18, EM19 and EM20 are strengthened using the species outline provided in the report titled "Statement of Heritage Impact for Land within the Elizabeth Macarthur Agricultural Institute NSW Agriculture, Menangle" by Geoffrey Britton dated September 2003.  Note: This Action has been completed.		<b>&gt;</b>	Environment Business Partner



	Activity	Action	Ar	ea	Responsibility
			RPGP	Field	
18.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	Within six months of DA 75-4-2005 being approved, prepare and execute an Interpretation Study to the satisfaction of the Director General, Heritage Office.  Note: This Action has been completed.		<b>~</b>	Environment Business Partner
19.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation	If excavation activities are likely to result in a relic being discovered/exposed/moved/damaged or destroyed, obtain an excavation permit from the NSW Heritage Office.  Additionally, if, during the site preparation and/or drilling phases of the development, an unexpected archaeological relic is uncovered (as defined under the Heritage Act 1977), cease all excavation and obtain an excavation permit under the Heritage Act 1977, from the NSW Heritage Office.	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	Environment Business Partner



	Activity	Action	Ar	ea	Responsibility
			RPGP	Field	
20.	Construction, Operation, Rehabilitation (EMAI)	Include effective screen planting and Sites 5 and 7 of lower to middle storey endemic Cumberland Plain species.  Ensure the mature height of screening vegetation at Site 5 will not obstruct the vista between the mansion and Mount Annan.  Ensure gas well area fences and production hardware are painted an appropriate colour at Sites 5 and 7 to minimise visual intrusion.  Ensure temporary site fencing is provided to protect the Cumberland Plain woodland vegetation, especially, the large grey box (Eucalyptus moluccana) at Site 5.  Fence off endemic vegetation in the vicinity of Sites 1 and 8.  Leave unused silage trenches as evidence of continuing agricultural practice at Site 9. Only fill one as required by site rehabilitation practice.  Ensure the planting out at Site 10 with endemic Cumberland Plain species in order to screen the well site from the mansion-Mount Gilead vista but not obscure the vista.  Where possible screen the gas production hardware at Site 17 to minimise its visual intrusion in relation to the nearby transport routes.  Consider a line of screen trees along Menangle Road such as Lemon, Carob or Irish Strawberry trees.		*	Environment Business Partner
21.	Rehabilitation (EMAI)	Ensure rehabilitation objectives are clearly stated and these include the need to return high quality agricultural ground or equal or higher productivity back to EMAI.  Ensure soil and water management plans are devised and applied.  Protect all Cumberland Plain woodland vegetation.  Include two Defects Liability Periods – one following completion of main site works for up to two years each as well as access roads and gathering lines, and one following the decommissioning of each well site up to one year each.		<b>√</b>	Environment Business Partner



## 4. Monitoring and reporting

Personnel responsible for monitoring and reporting are identified in **Section 1.3**. Complaints and incidents related to heritage management will be recorded, addressed and reported in accordance with **Sections 5.3.4 and 6.5** of the EMP and with this Sub Plan.

The Environment Business Partner is responsible for monitoring field activities to ensure works are carried out in accordance with this Sub Plan using the following methods:

- Pre-Mobilisation Hazard Identification Form (AEL 8611201)
- Environmental Management Sub Plan Compliance Audit European Heritage (AEL 8613536);
- AGL's Compliance Management System and myHSE in the event that a notice or order is received or a breach of legislation or licence condition is identified.
- · Site specific inductions;
- · Toolbox meetings;
- · Spot checks; and
- · Regular site inspections.

The Environment Business Partner is responsible for monitoring the CGP's performance against this EHMSP, and reporting European Heritage matters in the CGP Annual Environmental Performance Report (AEPR). The AEPR will be posted on the company website, and regular updates will be provided to members of the Community Consultative Committee (**CCC**).

Section 146 of the NSW *Heritage Act 1977*, requires that the discovery of a previously unknown relic be reported to the Heritage Council within a reasonable time of its discovery. The report is to be prepared and submitted by the Environment Business Partner.

#### 4.1 Records

The following monitoring and reporting records will be maintained:

- Pre-Mobilisation Hazard Identification Form (AEL 8611201)
- Environmental Management Sub Plan Compliance Audit European Heritage (AEL 8613536);
- If a heritage item is identified, and will be altered, moved, destroyed, etc., complete a section 60 application and submit it to the Heritage Council of NSW; and
- Maintain records of identified items of heritage significance within a Site Land Dossier.



## 5. Administrative

## 5.1 Training and competence

Section 5.2 of the CGP EMP details the Training and Competence requirements.

## 5.2 Site specific plans

Currently not applicable.

#### 5.3 Attachments

Currently not applicable.

#### 5.4 Definitions

Under the NSW Heritage Act, a 'relic' is defined as:

relic means any deposit, object or material evidence:

- 1. which relates to the settlement of the area that comprises New South Wales, not being Aboriginal settlement, and
- 2. which is 50 or more years old.

## 5.5 HSEMS references

Cultural Heritage Standard - AGL-HSE-STD-009.8

Cultural Heritage Standard Methodology – AGL-HSE-SDM-009.8

## 5.6 References

The following reports contain European Heritage assessments that have been undertaken for the CGP and are relevant related to this EHMSP:

- Environmental Assessment (EA) Camden Gas Project Joint Venture Stage 2 Drilling Program, Razorback Wells (RB03-RB12), HLA Envirosciences Pty Ltd (HLA), 2006a
- EA CGP Joint Venture Stage 2 Drilling Program: EMAI Wells (EM23 EM36), HLA, 2006b;
- EA CGP Joint Venture Stage 2 Drilling Program: Spring Farm and Menangle Park Project Area, HLA-ENSR, 2007;
- Dibden, J (2003) Camden Gas Project Stage 2 Archaeological and Heritage Assessment. Report prepared for Sydney Gas Operations Pty Ltd;
- Dibden, J (2000) Camden Gas Project Stage 1 Archaeological and Heritage Assessment. Report prepared for Sydney Gas Operations Pty Ltd.

# **Appendix A**

Existing heritage items register



# **Existing heritage items register**

Heritage items located within CGP and noted in the following documents/registers are listed below in Table A-1.

- Local Environmental Plan (LEP);
- Sydney Regional Environmental Management Plan (SREP);
- · Site Heritage Register (SHR); and
- Register of the National Estate (RNE).

Table A-1: Existing Heritage Items within the Camden Gas Project Area

Area	Item	Address		Listing	9	
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE
All	Upper Canal System (Pheasants Nest Weir to Prospect Reservoir)	Prospect, Blacktown LGA.	√ Wollondilly Camden		✓	
Razorback	Mount Hercules Homestead—garden, trees and slab barns	340 Mount Hercules Road	√ Wollondilly			
	Mt Hercules Homestead—ruins, well, trees and slab garage	40 Mount Hercules Road	√ Wollondilly			
	Old Razorback Road (relics of	Razorback Road	✓			
	Great South Road)		Wollondilly			
	Galvin Cottage	Corner of Galvin and Macarthur Road.		✓		
	Bruchhauser House	23 Bruchhauser Crescent	<b>✓</b>			
			Camden			



Elderslie	Item	Address		Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE		
Elderslie	Tramway (Remnants of former	Camden Valley Way	✓					
	Camden to Campbelltown railway line stations and infrastructure)		Camden					
	"John Oxley"	46 Camden Valley Way	✓					
			Camden					
Elderslie	"Yamba"	181 Camden Valley Way	✓					
			Camden					
	Houses	43,49 Hilder Street	✓					
			Camden					
	House	141 Lodges Road	✓					
			Camden					
	Hilsyde	56 Hilder Street	✓					
			Camden					
	St Mark's Church	33A Luker Street	✓					
			Camden					
	"Nesbitt Home"	43 Macarthur Road	✓					
			Camden					
	House	67 Macarthur Road	✓					
			Camden					
	"Elderslie"	71 Macarthur Road	✓					
			Camden					



	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Cottage	72 Macarthur Road	✓				
			Camden				
	"Belvedere"	40 River Road	✓				
			Camden				
Glen Alpine	Water Supply Reservoir, Cattle Tank and Silt Traps	Hurley Park, Allman Street,	✓		✓		
		Campbelltown	Campbelltown				
	St John the Evangelist Church (new)	Lot 1 DP 227905, Campbelltown	✓				
			Campbelltown				
	Glen Alpine (second house of that name)	12 Belltrees Close, Glen Alpine	✓			✓	
			Campbelltown				
	Glen Alpine (site of original house).	Abington Crescent, Heritage Park, Glen	✓			✓	
		Alpine/ Menangle Rd	Campbelltown				
Campbelltown	Stations of the Cross	Campbelltown	✓				
			Campbelltown				
	Emily Cottage	Campbelltown	✓				
Q			Campbelltown				
	Quondong	Old Menangle Rd, Campbelltown	✓		✓	✓	
			Campbelltown				
	Wesleyan Chapel	Campbelltown	✓				
			Campbelltown				



Englorie Park St. Helens	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Airds Cottage (formerly Farrier's	318 Queen Street, Part Portion 67 and	✓				
	Arms) and Water Trough	Part Portion 74 Parish of St Peter, Campbelltown	Campbelltown				
	Campbelltown Community Centre	317 Queen Street, Part Portion 74	✓				
	(formerly Fieldhouse's Produce Store and Campbelltown News Building)	Parish of St Peter, DP 77929, Campbelltown	Campbelltown				
	Englorie Park House	2 Parkholme Circuit, Englorie Park	✓			✓	
			Campbelltown				
	Englorie Park	Parkholme Circuit, Englorie Park				✓	
Englorie Park	St Helens Park	St Helens Park Drive			✓		
	St Helens Park House and Dam	St Helens Park	✓				
			Campbelltown				
St. Helens Park	St Helens Park House and Outbuildings	St Helens Park Dr				<b>√</b>	
	Denfield and Curtilage	Appin Road, St Helens Park.	✓		✓	✓	
			Campbelltown				
	Silos Public road	Appin Road	✓				
	Appin Road reservation		Campbelltown				
	Bradbury						
	Raith	Fern Ave, Bradbury	✓				
			Campbelltown				



Area	Item	Address		Listing	J	
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE
-	Beulah	767 Appin Road			✓	
Bradbury	Sugarloaf Farm	Menangle Road	√ Campbelltown		✓	
Gilead	Menangle Railway Station Group	Station Street (Main Southern Railway)	√ Wollondilly		✓	
	Menangle Conservation Area	Menangle	√ Wollondilly			
Menangle	Camden Park Estate Central Creamery	Station Street 45 Stevens Road	√ Wollondilly			
	Central Creamery	Menangle		✓		
	Camden Park Estate—Central Creamery Manager's Cottage	15 Menangle Road	√ Wollondilly			
	Camden Park Rotolactor	Station Street15 Menangle Road	√ Wollondilly			
	Bungalow	92 Menangle Road	√ Wollondilly			
	Bungalow	96 Menangle Road	√ Wollondilly			
	House	100 Menangle Road	√ Wollondilly			



Area	Item	Address		Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE		
	Cottage	102 Menangle Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Bungalow	106 Menangle Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Cottage	124 Menangle Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Cottage	128 Menangle Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Dairy No. 4 (EMAI Cottage 29)	60 Woodbridge Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Gilbulla (Anglican Conference	710 Moreton Park Road	✓					
	Centre).		Wollondilly					
	Menangle Gate Lodge (former)	60 Woodbridge Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Menangle Store	2 Station Street	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	St James Anglican Church	131 Menangle Road	✓			✓		
			Wollondilly					
	St Patrick's Catholic Church	119 Menangle Street	✓					
			Wollondilly					



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Cottage	138 Menangle Road	✓				
			Wollondilly				
	Dairy Cottage	1370 Moreton Park Road	✓				
			Wollondilly				
	Bungalow	107 Burragorang Road	✓				
			Wollondilly				
	Mount Hunter Public School	165 Burragorang Road	✓				
			Wollondilly				
	Studley Park (including mansion	52 Lodges Road/Camden Valley Way	✓		✓	✓	
	and grounds)		Camden				
	St. Thomas Cemetery	6 Richardson Road	✓				
			Camden				
Mount Hunter	Burton Arms Inn	322 Camden Valley Way	✓				
			Camden				
	St Thomas Church Chapel Group	1A Wilson Crescent	✓				
			Camden				
Camden South	House, Slab House and Hayshed	690 Cawdor Road	✓				
			Wollondilly				
	Methodist Church, Cemetery and	445 Cawdor Road	✓				
	Parsonage		Wollondilly				



Area	Item	Address		Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE		
	Slab Hut and Trees	500 <del>-470</del> Cawdor Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Cawdor Village Group: Church,	675–685 Cawdor Road	✓					
	house and slab shed, trees, school and school residence		Wollondilly					
Cawdor	Cawdor Dairy	Remembrance Driveway	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Camden Valley Inn	290 Remembrance Drive	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Dairy Cottage	105 Westbrook Road	✓					
			Wollondilly					
	Roman Catholic Cemetery	150 Cawdor Road	✓					
			Camden					
	Camden District Cemetery	201 Cawdor Road	✓					
			Camden					
	"Oldham Hills"	276 Cawdor Road	✓					
			Camden					
	"Burnham Grove"	332 Cawdor Road	✓					
			Camden					
	"Mayfield" (including barn and farm	380 Cawdor Road	✓					
	outbuildings)		Camden					



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Wooden mileposts	Cawdor Road, (section of Great South Road) adjoining 505 Remembrance Driveway	√ Wollondilly				
	Cawdor Creamery site	505 Cawdor Road	√ Wollondilly				
	Old Dairy Farmers Co-op Depot	11 Argyle Street	√ Camden				
	Former Clinton's Motor Garage	16 Argyle Street	√ Camden				
	Former First Camden Bank	23 Argyle Street	√ Camden				
	House	44 Argyle Street	√ Camden				
Camden	St John the Evangelist Anglican Church	Menangle Rd				✓	
	St Pauls Catholic Church	John St				✓	
	St Johns Rectory and Stables	Menangle Rd				✓	
	St Johns Anglican Church Group	Menangle Rd				<b>✓</b>	
	St Johns Hill and John Street Conservation Area	-				<b>✓</b>	



Area	Item	Address		Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE		
	Corner commercial building	64 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Former Plough & Harrow Inn	75–79 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Commercial building	76–100 Argyle Street	✓					
	"Whiteman's"		Camden					
	Corner shop	110 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Bank	121 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Bank	125 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Post Office	135 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Former Foresters' Hall	147 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Corner Shop	151 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Agricultural Hall	195 Argyle Street	✓					
			Camden					



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Bungalow	10 Barsden Street	✓				
			Camden				
	Camden Showground (including	10A Cawdor Road	✓				
	grounds, obelisk, pavilion, fencing, tiered seating and memorial gates) and Onslow Park		Camden				
	Stockyard (including auction ring,	30, 32 and 34 Edward Street	✓				
	buildings and cattle chutes)		Camden				
	Cottage	17 Elizabeth Street, Camden, New	✓				
		South Wales	Camden				
	"Chesham's Cottage"	19 Elizabeth Street	✓				
			Camden				
	Inter-war flat building	33 Elizabeth Street	✓				
			Camden				
	House weatherboard	34 Elizabeth Street	✓				
			Camden				
	"Nant Gwylan" (including house and	33A-Exeter Street	✓				
	garden)		Camden				
	House	12, 14, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 27 Hill	✓				
		Street	Camden				



Area	Item	Address		Listing	J	
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE
	House (former presbytery)	28 Hill Street	✓			
			Camden			
	House	29 Hill Street	✓			
			Camden			
	"Brookfield House"	30 Hill Street	✓			
			Camden			
	"Brookfield House"	32 Hill Street	✓			
			Camden			
	House	33 Hill Street	✓			
			Camden			
	National Australia Bank	Argyle St				✓
	John Street Group	John St				✓
	Camden Public School (including	John Street	✓			
	early 20th century brick garage and store, archaeological potential of the acquired allotments, and early road reserves/alignment, but excluding all other buildings and grounds)		Camden			
	St Paul's Church	26–36 John Street	✓			
			Camden			



Area	Item	Address		Listing	J	
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE
	Camden Court House	31 John St				✓
	Court House	33 John Street	✓			
			Camden			
	Police Station and Residence	35 John Street	✓			✓
			Camden			
	"Macaria"	37 John Street	✓			✓
			Camden			
	Cottage	39 John Street	✓			✓
			Camden			
	Camden Library and Former Fire	40-42 John Street	✓			
			Camden			
	St Andrews Church	44 John Street	✓			
			Camden			
	Cottage	62 John Street	✓			
			Camden			
	Cottage	64 John Street	✓			
			Camden			
	Archaeological Site	66 John Street	✓			
			Camden			



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Archaeological Site	68 John Street	✓				
			Camden				
	Houses	70, 72, 75 John Street	✓				
			Camden				
	Cottage	74, 76, 78, 80 John Street	✓				
			Camden				
	Bungalow	1 Menangle Road	✓				
			Camden				
	Cottages	3,5 Menangle Road	✓				
			Camden				
	Cottage	7 Menangle Road	✓				
			Camden				
	House	9 Menangle Road	✓				
			Camden				
	Macarthur Park	13–13A Menangle Road	✓				
			Camden				
	Corner Shop	34 Macquarie Avenue	✓				
			Camden				
	"Nepean House"	1–3 Mitchell Street	✓				
			Camden				



Area	Item	Address		Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE		
	Cottages	7, 9 Mitchell Street	✓					
			Camden					
	"Taplin"	17 Mitchell Street	✓					
			Camden					
	"Edithville"	18 Mitchell Street	✓					
			Camden					
	"Mitchell House"	29–31 Mitchell Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Milestones and Mileposts	Old Hume Highway	✓					
			Camden					
	Cottage	9 Park Street	✓					
			Camden					
	View Street Worker's Cottages	5–13 View Street	✓					
			Camden					
	View Street Worker's cottages	6–20 View Street	✓					
			Camden					
	Camden Park	Camden Park Estate Rd				✓		
	Camden Park Estate	Elizabeth Macarthur Avenue		✓				
	Camden District Hospital	61 Menangle Road	✓					
			Camden					



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Dairy No 9 (EMAI Cottage 24)	240 Woodbridge Road	✓				
			Wollondilly				
	Masonic Lodge	36 Hill Street	✓				
			Camden				
	St John's Church (including church	6–22 Menangle Road	✓				
	and grounds, rectory, stables, lynch gates, grassed slopes and cemetery)		Camden				
	St Johns Hill and John Street Conservation Area	St Johns Hill, John Street				<b>√</b>	
	Thurns Weir	Between Camden and Menangle		✓			
Camden	Macarthur Family Cemetery	South of the Camden Park Estate Road, being an extension of Elizabeth Macarthur Avenue.				<b>✓</b>	
	Camden Park Estate – house and	Remembrance Driveway	✓				
	garden		Wollondilly				
	Camden Park Estate—Dairy No 8,	445 Remembrance Driveway	✓				
	cottages and orchard sites		Wollondilly				
	Aboriginal scarred trees	Young Avenue and Public Reserves—	✓				
		Park Way (Bridgewater Estate)	Wollondilly				
	Camden Park	Elizabeth Macarthur Avenue			✓		



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
Camden Park	Camden Park Garden and Nursey	Camden Park Estate Rd				✓	
	House and curtilage	176 Macarthur Road	✓				
			Camden				
	House and curtilage	196 Macarthur Road	✓				
			Camden				
	Hitching posts	John Street in front of Macaria	✓				
			Camden				
	Milestones and Mileposts	Argyle Street, Camden and Cawdor Road, Cawdor	✓				
			Camden				
	Belgenny Farm (including colonial homestead, weatherboard cottage, octagonal shed, granary and grounds)	100 Elizabeth Macarthur Ave	√ Camden				
	Camden Park Estate and Belgenny Farm	Elizabeth Macarthur Avenue			✓		
	House (former Camden Park gate	224 Old Hume Highway	✓				
	lodge)		Camden				
	Home Farmhouse	Camden Park Estate Rd				✓	
Spring Farm	Mural and Wishing Well	Corner Broughton Street and Menangle Road, Camden	✓				
			Camden				



Area	Item	Address	Listing				
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE	
	Sandstone curbs and gutters	Within road reservation	✓				
			Camden				
-	Tramway (Remnants of former	Narellan Road and Camden Valley	✓				
	Camden to Campbelltown	Way, Narellan	Camden				
	railway line stations and infrastructure)						
	Weirs (Weirs across the Nepean	Nepean River	✓				
	River at Sharpes, Cobbitty,	and	Camden				
	Camden, Thurns, Brownlow Hill and Mt Hunter Rivulet)						
	Camden Town Centre	In the vicinity of Camden	✓				
	Conservation Area		Camden				
	Struggletown Conservation Area	In the vicinity of Narellan	✓				
			Camden				
	Glenlee, outbuildings, garden & gatelodge	Glenlee Rd, Menangle Park			✓	✓	
	Menangle Railway Viaduct  Menangle Rd  Menangle Park Racecourse  Menangle Park				✓		
			✓				
	Menangle rail bridge over Nepean	Over Nepean River, between Gillead	✓		✓	✓	
	River	and Menangle suburbs	Wollondilly				



Area	Item	Address	Listing			
			LEP	SREP 20	SHR	RNE
Menangle Park	Menangle Weir	Menangle		✓		
	Menangle Weir	Station Street	✓			
			Wollondilly			
Menangle	Menangle House	Menangle Rd, Menangle Park				✓
	Slab Hut	40 Carrolls Road	✓			
			Wollondilly			
	Menangle Railway Bridge	Menangle		✓		
	Nepean River Weir	Maldon		✓		